
 

Page 1 of 37 

 

 

DAWSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

VOTING SESSION AGENDA - THURSDAY, JULY 18, 2019 

DAWSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT CENTER ASSEMBLY ROOM 

25 JUSTICE WAY, DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 30534 

6:00 PM 

  

 

A.  ROLL CALL 

 
B.  OPENING PRESENTATION 
      Proclamation- Recognition of the Dawson County 7&8 Softball Dizzy Dean State 

      Championship Team 

C.  INVOCATION 

 
D.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
E.  ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 
F.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Minutes of the Work Session held on July 2, 2019  
Minutes of the Voting Session held on July 2, 2019 

  
G.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
H.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
  
I.  ZONING 

1. ZA 19-05 – Dawson Village Partners requests rezoning of property located at TMP 112-

019, 113-057-002, 112-109, 104-065, 104-028, 104-029 and 112-018 from CHB 

(Commercial Highway Business), RA (Residential Agriculture), RPC (Residential 

Planned Community), CPCD (Commercial Planned Community Development) and COI 

(Commercial Office / Institution) to Mixed Use Village. (Tabled from the June 20, 2019, 

Voting Session. 2nd of 2 public hearings; 1st public hearing was held May 16, 2019)  

J.  NEW BUSINESS 
1. Consideration of Request for Sheriff’s Office Compensation 
2. Consideration of Board Appointment: 

     a. Library Board 
          i. Carroll L. Turner- replacing Duane Wallace (Term: July 2019 through June 

             2023) 
  
K.  PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
L.  ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
Those with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, 

or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should contact the ADA Coordinator at 706-344-3666, 

extension 44514. The county will make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

1



 

Page 2 of 37 

 

  

2



 

DAWSON COUNTY 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS  

IN RECOGNITION OF THE 

DAWSON COUNTY 

7&8 SOFTBALL DIZZY DEAN  

STATE CHAMPIONSHIP TEAM 

PROCLAMATION 

 

WHEREAS, Dawson County 7&8 All-Star Softball Team consists of young ladies who live and 

attend school in Dawson County; 

  

WHEREAS, they worked diligently throughout the late winter and all of spring and early 

summer to prepare themselves for competition; 

  

WHEREAS, they have represented Dawson County wonderfully with not only athletic 

achievement but with dignity and sportsmanship. They represented Dawson County in the 

District Tournament held in Hall County, where they won the Dizzy Dean District 6 

Championship. They then traveled to the Dizzy Dean State Tournament in Carrolton, where they 

battled hard and brought home the state championship trophy to Dawson County; 

 

WHEREAS, the Dawson County Board of Commissioners commends the Dawson County 7&8 

All-Star Softball Team for its talents, dedication, hard work and congratulates the team on its 

accomplishments;  

WHEREAS, the Dawson County Board of Commissioners does hereby bestow its best wishes 

for continued success in all future endeavors to these young ladies and knows that the future of 

softball in Dawson County is very bright; 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Dawson County Board of Commissioners does hereby proclaim  

July 18, 2019, as   

Dawson County 7&8 Softball All-Stars Day 

 

        Attest: 

 

 

              

Billy Thurmond, Chairman     Kristen Cloud, County Clerk 

3



 

Page 4 of 37 

 

  

4



 

Page 5 of 37 

 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Minutes of the Work Session held on July 2, 2019  

  

5



 

Page 1 of 1 

Minutes 07-02-19 

 

 

DAWSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   

WORK SESSION MINUTES – JULY 2, 2019 

DAWSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT CENTER ASSEMBLY ROOM 

25 JUSTICE WAY, DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 30534 

4:00 PM 

 

 

Those present were Chairman Thurmond; Commissioner Fausett, District 1; Commissioner 

Gaines, District 2; Commissioner Satterfield, District 3; Commissioner Nix, District 4; County 

Manager Headley; Interim County Attorney Frickey; County Clerk Cloud; and interested 

citizens of Dawson County. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Presentation of Request from Etowah Water & Sewer Authority (EWSA) to Donate Toward 

Construction of New Senior Center- EWSA General Manager Brooke Anderson 

In addition to EWSA General Manager Brooke Anderson, this item was presented by 

EWSA Board Chairman Jim King.  

 

Motion passed 4-0 to accept the Request from Etowah Water & Sewer Authority to Donate 

$10,000 Toward Construction of the New Senior Center. Fausett/Satterfield 

2. Presentation of Request for Sheriff’s Office Compensation- Sheriff Jeff Johnson 

This item will be placed on the July 18, 2019, Voting Session Agenda. 

3. Presentation of FY 2020 Department of Human Services / Deanna Specialty Transportation 

Inc. Contract- Senior Services Director Dawn Pruett 

This item will be added to the July 2, 2019, Voting Session Agenda. 

4. Presentation of Board Appointment: 

a. Library Board 

i. Carroll L. Turner- replacing Duane Wallace (Term: July 2019 through June   

2023) 

This item will be placed on the July 18, 2019, Voting Session Agenda. 
 

5. County Manager Report 

This item was for information only. 

6. County Attorney Report 

Interim County Attorney Frickey had no information to report. 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Motion passed 4-0 to enter into Executive Session to discuss potential litigation. Nix/Gaines 

 

APPROVE:                                                 ATTEST: 

 

 

 

              

Billy Thurmond, Chairman                               Kristen Cloud, County Clerk 

6



 

Page 7 of 37 

 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

Minutes of the Voting Session held on July 2, 2019  

  

7



 

Page 1 of 3 

Minutes 07-02-19 

 

 

DAWSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS   

VOTING SESSION MINUTES – JULY 2, 2019 

DAWSON COUNTY GOVERNMENT CENTER ASSEMBLY ROOM 

25 JUSTICE WAY, DAWSONVILLE, GEORGIA 30534 

6:00 PM 

 

 

ROLL CALL: Those present were Chairman Thurmond; Commissioner Fausett, District 1; 

Commissioner Gaines, District 2; Commissioner Satterfield, District 3; Commissioner Nix, 

District 4; County Manager Headley; Interim County Attorney Frickey; County Clerk Cloud; and 

interested citizens of Dawson County. 

 

Motion passed 4-0 to come out of Executive Session. Nix/Fausett 

  

INVOCATION: Chairman Thurmond 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Chairman Thurmond 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS:   
Chairman Thurmond announced that county government offices would be closed July 4, 2019, 

for the Fourth of July holiday. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:  

Motion passed 4-0 to approve the Minutes of the Work Session held on June 20, 2019. 

Gaines/Satterfield 

 

Motion passed 4-0 to approve the Minutes of the Voting Session held on June 20, 2019. 

Fausett/Nix 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

Motion passed 4-0 to approve the agenda with the following change: 

 

 Addition of No. 8 under New Business: 

o FY 2020 Department of Human Services / Deanna Specialty Transportation Inc. 

Contract 

  

Nix/Gaines 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Lance Leuliette- Dawsonville, Georgia, urged the Board of Commissioners to support the 

county’s firefighters, as well as Sheriff’s deputies, with a pay increase. He said the county 

continues to grow and that there has not been a pay raise for firefighters in 10 years. He said the 

county must be proactive and asked the board to approve a pay increase for the county’s 

firefighters as well as for the firefighters who join the county in the future. Leuliette said more 

firefighters are needed and encouraged the board to increase staffing on every fire engine. He 

said he understood budget concerns but stressed the importance of keeping the county and its 

citizens safe, even if it means implementing a fire tax or raising the millage rate. 

 

  

8



 

Page 2 of 3 

Minutes 07-02-19 

 

 

ALCOHOL LICENSE: 
Alcohol License Transfer (Retail Consumption on Premises of Beer and Wine) - Point Bluff LLC 

d/b/a Crave Hot Dogs 

Motion passed 4-0 to approve the Alcohol License Transfer (Retail Consumption on Premises of 

Beer and Wine) - Point Bluff LLC d/b/a Crave Hot Dogs. Satterfield/Fausett 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

Consideration of Special Event Business License Application - Carol Stream Amusements Inc. 

Carnival 

Motion passed 4-0 to approve the Special Event Business License Application - Carol Stream 

Amusements Inc. Carnival. Gaines/Fausett 

 

Consideration of Special Event Business License Application - North Georgia Premium Outlets 

Food Truck Events 

Motion passed 4-0 to approve the Special Event Business License Application - North Georgia 

Premium Outlets Food Truck Events. Fausett/Satterfield 

 

Consideration of Special Event Business License Application - Papa Pat's Corn Maze 

Motion passed 4-0 to approve the Special Event Business License Application - Papa Pat's Corn 

Maze with the following stipulation: 

 

1. The applicant shall seek rezoning of the property to Residential Agricultural (RA)  

 

Fausett/Satterfield 

 

Consideration of Emergency Services Pay Compensation Proposal 

A motion was made by Commissioner Satterfield, and seconded by Commissioner Gaines, to 

approve the Emergency Services Pay Compensation Proposal – Option B: a 5 percent pay 

increase for firefighters / EMTs and a 10 percent pay increase for firefighters / paramedics.  

 

Following discussion, a motion was made by Commissioner Satterfield, and seconded by 

Commissioner Gaines, to amend the original motion to include that the Emergency Services Pay 

Compensation Proposal – Option B take effect during the pay period that began June 29, 2019.  

 

Motion passed 4-0 to approve the amendment to the original motion: to include that the 

Emergency Services Pay Compensation Proposal – Option B take effect during the pay period 

that began June 29, 2019. Satterfield/Gaines 

 

Motion passed 4-0 to approve the Emergency Services Pay Compensation Proposal – Option B: 

a 5 percent pay increase for firefighters / EMTs and a 10 percent pay increase for firefighters / 

paramedics. There currently are 10 vacant positions budgeted for Emergency Medical Services 

that are not filled; those funds will be used to pay for the pay increases for Emergency Medical 

Services. There are three vacant positions for Fire that are not filled; those funds will be used to 

pay for the pay increases for Fire. Satterfield/Gaines 
 

Consideration of RFP #343-19 - Salary Study for Dawson County Award Request 

Motion passed 4-0 to approve RFP #343-19 - Salary Study for Dawson County Award Request; 

to accept the proposals submitted and to award a contract to Management Advisory Group in the 

9



 

Page 3 of 3 

Minutes 07-02-19 

 

 

amount of $32,500. Funds will come from the General Government Contingency. 

Satterfield/Gaines 

 

Consideration of Settlement Agreement with ALA Riley Place LLC with Respect to a Stop  Work 

Order Issued on June 3, 2019, for the Riley Place Subdivision  

Motion passed 4-0 to approve a Settlement Agreement with ALA Riley Place LLC with Respect 

to a Stop Work Order Issued on June 3, 2019, for the Riley Place Subdivision. Nix/Fausett 

 

Consideration of Appeal by ALA Riley Place LLC of a Stop Work Order Issued on June 3,  2019, 

for the Riley Place Subdivision 

This item was deemed moot following approval of the previous agenda item: Settlement 

Agreement with ALA Riley Place LLC with Respect to a Stop Work Order Issued on June 3, 

2019, for the Riley Place Subdivision. Counsel for ALA Riley Place LLC and counsel for the 

county stated such for the record. 

 

Consideration of FY 2020 Department of Human Services / Deanna Specialty Transportation 

Inc. Contract 

Motion passed 4-0 to approve the FY 2020 Department of Human Services / Deanna Specialty 

Transportation Inc. Contract. Fausett/Gaines 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: 

Anna Richardson- Dawsonville, Georgia, said she is concerned about some of the unstable trees 

near the area of Vandiviere and Valley roads. She said it likely would be best if the trees were 

removed since they pose a threat, especially during the winter months. Richardson spoke about 

the possibility of further code enforcement regarding accumulation of refuse in the same area. 

She said there is an especially “bad situation” on Valley Road. She said there is a large amount 

of garbage, etc., on a particular parcel, noting that it is “getting out of control.” Richardson said 

she is a certified residential appraiser and that such refuse deters builders and developers who 

might be interested in the area, as well as lowers property values. Richardson also said the area is 

a “hotspot” for drugs and alcohol, adding the way that some of the properties appear lends itself 

to such activity. She suggested that perhaps the Sheriff’s Office could check the areas of 

Vandiviere and Thompson roads and / or Highway 53 and Valley Road on Friday or Saturday 

night. She said she and her neighbors have picked up alcohol cans and bottles as well as needles 

in the area. Richardson said she is concerned because such appearances and activity stigmatizes a 

“beautiful area.” She requested the board focus a little of its time on the area and “remove the 

stigma.” 

ADJOURNMENT: 

 

 

APPROVE:                                                 ATTEST: 

 

 

 

             

Billy Thurmond, Chairman                               Kristen Cloud, County Clerk 

 

10



 

Page 11 of 37 

 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

1. ZA 19-05 – Dawson Village Partners requests rezoning of property located at TMP 112-

019, 113-057-002, 112-109, 104-065, 104-028, 104-029 and 112-018 from CHB 

(Commercial Highway Business), RA (Residential Agriculture), RPC (Residential 

Planned Community), CPCD (Commercial Planned Community Development) and COI 

(Commercial Office / Institution) to Mixed Use Village. (Tabled from the June 20, 2019, 

Voting Session. 2nd of 2 public hearings; 1st public hearing was held May 16, 2019)  

  

11



12



Rezoning Narrative 
Dawson Village Partners, LLC | Etowah Village, Ga 400 | June 2019 

The applicant, Dawson Village Partners, LLC requests the Rezoning of Parcel Numbers: 112 019, 112 109, 
112 018, 104 065, 113 057 002, 112 025 002, and from R-A, RPC, C-HB, C-PCD, & C-CI to MUV- Mixed Use 
Village District in order to build a Master Planned Community on 518 acres bordered on the East by Ga 
400 and Lumpkin Campground Road and on the West by the Etowah River.  The site is the former location 
of the defunct Southern Catholic College.  The existing zoning, based upon the Southern Catholic Master 
Plan, permits a variety of uses of which most are mirrored within the proposed development plans:  
Retail, Office, Multi-Family and Single-Family Residences.  The applicant wishes to modify the 
arrangement of these uses and add a few additional parcels to create a viable alternative use for this tract 
that will become an asset to Dawson County. 

The gross density for all residential components combined is 2.4 units/acre.  This remarkable 
development will consist of the following uses: 

● 338,000 Square Feet of Retail/Service Space.  This area will be designed with an Avalon-Urban 
Village Life-Style, incorporating Residential Living on the 2nd & 3rd Story above the Retail Area. 

● 243,200 Square Feet of Class A Office Space with a building height up to 10 Stories 
● A Convention and Performing Arts Center 
● Site for a future Fire Station on Ga 400 
● An Historic Chinese Cultural Center providing Public Awareness of the Chinese Arts, Gardens, 

Herbal Medicine, and Lifestyle.  This area will also provide an additional 199,000 Square Feet of 
Retail Space, Restaurants, and Retail Service including a 4-Story Hotel. 

● 800 Units of Multi-Family Living 
● 180 Units of Single-Family Attached Homes 
● A 350-Unit Continuing Care Retirement Community providing for both Independent and Assisted 

Living 
● 265 Single Family Detached Homes divided within 3 separate neighborhoods 
● 156 acres Preserved for Parks and Greenspace 

 

The property is bordered on the West by the Etowah River.  It is bordered on the east by Ga 400, and on 
the North and South by various Residential and Agricultural properties.  This property is designated as 
Commercial-Highway, Multi-Family, Campus-Style Business Park, Planned Residential, Suburban 
Residential, Agriculture, and Parks/Recreation on the Future Land Use Plan which is what was used to 
guide our Master Plan.  The proximity to a major transportation corridor warrants a higher density in 
order to condense development, concentrate growth along arterial roads, and minimize the impact on 
secondary roads. 

The proposed Retail Village will contain shopping, offices, and restaurants that will be integrated into the 
Residential Neighborhoods providing a walkable and sustainable live-work-play community.  It will also 
serve the surrounding area and become a sister-destination to the Outlet Mall expanding the shopping 
visitor’s experience in Dawson County.  The architecture will portray a traditional village and will 
complement the streetscape. 

The Cultural Center is expected to be a Regional Destination for tourists drawing not only from the Outlet 
Mall, but from the entire Southeastern US Region.  A similar Center was opened in Portland in 2000 and 
draws 170,000 visiting tourist per year.  The Hotel, Conference Center, and Fine-Dining Restaurants will 
provide a much-needed overnight option for out-of-state and international tourists visiting the outlet 

13



Page 2 

mall.  Maximizing the stay and experience of tourists maximizes the income for Dawson County.  Medical 
Offices providing organic and holistic medicinal solutions will be located here to both educate and treat 
the proposed, as well as, the existing local residents.  A Fire Station will also be incorporated into the 
Town Center to provide a much needed emergency service center for the surrounding area. 

Pocket Parks and Sidewalks will be integrated throughout the Master-Planned community to create 
pedestrian-friendly environment and provide social gathering areas for the residents.  By decreasing the 
size of the lots, we increased open space.  We are preserving a remarkable 156 acres of Open Space.  This 
land will be utilized to create large usable and meaningful green areas that can realistically sustain 
wildlife habitats and be enjoyed by the entire community. 

The residential neighborhoods will be integrally connected to the proposed retail areas to provide a true 
Live, Work, Play destination for the community. 

The Primary access points for the community will be Ga 400 and Lumpkin Campground Rd just 
west of Ga 400.  Minor aggress/egress will be provided to Grant Road at Ga 400 and a gated 
entrance restricted to emergency vehicles only will be provided to SR 53.  A Traffic Study has 
been performed and Traffic improvements identified by the Study will be implemented 
throughout the development phases as they are warranted.  The nature of the proposed Mixed-
Use Development greatly reduces traffic by providing easy access to most needs within the 
community.  It is also well documented that Senior-Oriented Developments, similar to this, 
generate far less traffic than traditional neighborhoods. 

 

 

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



 

Page 32 of 37 

 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

1. Consideration of Request for Sheriff’s Office Compensation 

  

32



 
DAWSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AGENDA FORM 
 
 

Department: Dawson County Sheriff’s Office                    Work Session: 07.02.19 
 
Prepared By: Sheriff Jeff Johnson                          Voting Session: 07.18.19 
 
Presenter: Sheriff Jeff Johnson            Public Hearing:  Yes       No       
 
Agenda Item Title: Presentation of Sheriff’s Office Compensation  

 
Background Information:  

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

Current Information: 

 

 

 

 

Budget Information:   Applicable:        Not Applicable:         Budgeted: Yes           No         

Fund Dept. Acct No. Budget Balance Requested Remaining 

 
 

      

 

Recommendation/Motion:       

Department Head Authorization:             Date:       

Finance Dept. Authorization: Vickie Neikirk          Date: 6/26/19 

County Manager Authorization: DH           Date: 6/27/19  

County Attorney Authorization:                Date:       

Comments/Attachments:  

 

Similar to the recent Fire Department request, The Sheriff’s Office continues to struggle with 

adequate staffing, retention and recruitment. In a time when law enforcement agencies are 

aggressively competing for staff through increased pay, benefits, signing bonuses, recruiting 

bonuses, etc., DCSO continues to fall further and further behind in these areas. DCSO competes with 

its neighbors to the south for personnel.  The pay gaps between our DCSO and our competing 

agencies are notable and ever increasing with the most recent average reflecting that DCSO deputies 

are paid approximately $7,226 less than these others. It is important to note that this addresses 

starting pay for non-experienced officers. We have many serving here with multiple years of 

experience who do not make the starting pay of these competing agencies.  

 

To bring our staff more in line with our primary competitors, to retain our staff, to recruit experienced 

officers; we request a realistic pay increase for our law enforcement professionals. Options to be 

presented at work session.  

 

33



 

Page 34 of 37 

 

Item Attachment Documents: 

 

2. Consideration of Board Appointment: 

     a. Library Board 

          i. Carroll L. Turner- replacing Duane Wallace (Term: July 2019 through June 

2023) 

  

34



35



36



37


	Top
	 07.18.19 VS- Proclamation
	07.18.19 VS- Proclamation All-Stars 

	 07.18.19 VS- 07.02.19 WS Minutes
	07.02.19 Work Session

	 07.18.19 VS- 07.02.19 VS Minutes
	07.02.19 Voting Session

	1. 07.18.19 VS- ZA 19-05
	2019_07_16_171010 rezoning withdraw request
	Etowah Village_RZ Letter of Intent_rev06-18-2019
	Dawson County Rezoning App with SRA signatures
	test

	1. 07.18.19 VS- S.O. Pay Compensation Request
	Agenda Request Form - S.O. Pay

	2. 07.18.19 VS- Board Appt.-Library: Carroll Turner
	Carroll L. Turner (redacted)

	Bottom

